May 2008



Annual Audit and Inspection Letter

Gosport Borough Council

External audit is an essential element in the process of accountability for public money and makes an important contribution to the stewardship of public resources and the corporate governance of public services.

Audit in the public sector is underpinned by three fundamental principles.

- Auditors are appointed independently from the bodies being audited.
- The scope of auditors' work is extended to cover not only the audit of financial statements but also value for money and the conduct of public business.
- Auditors may report aspects of their work widely to the public and other key stakeholders.

The duties and powers of auditors appointed by the Audit Commission are set out in the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Local Government Act 1999 and the Commission's statutory Code of Audit Practice. Under the Code of Audit Practice, appointed auditors are also required to comply with the current professional standards issued by the independent Auditing Practices Board.

Appointed auditors act quite separately from the Commission and in meeting their statutory responsibilities are required to exercise their professional judgement independently of both the Commission and the audited body.

Status of our reports

This report provides an overall summary of the Audit Commission's assessment of the Council, drawing on audit, inspection and performance assessment work and is prepared by your Relationship Manager.

In this report, the Commission summarises findings and conclusions from the statutory audit, which have previously been reported to you by your appointed auditor. Appointed auditors act separately from the Commission and, in meeting their statutory responsibilities, are required to exercise their professional judgement independently of the Commission (and the audited body). The findings and conclusions therefore remain those of the appointed auditor and should be considered within the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission.

Reports prepared by appointed auditors are:

- prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission; and
- addressed to members or officers and prepared for the sole use of the audited body; no responsibility is taken by auditors to any member or officer in their individual capacity, or to any third party.

Copies of this report

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille, on tape, or in a language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070.

© Audit Commission 2008

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ Tel: 020 7828 1212 Fax: 020 7976 6187 Textphone (minicom): 020 7630 0421 www.audit-commission.gov.uk

Contents

Key messages	4
Action needed by the Council	4
Purpose, responsibilities and scope	5
How is the Council performing?	6
The improvement since last year - our Direction of Travel report	6
Other performance work	14
The audit of the accounts and value for money	15
Looking ahead	19
Closing remarks	20
Availability of this letter	20

Key messages

- 1 The main messages for the Council included in this report are:
 - Gosport Borough Council can demonstrate good progress in meeting its priorities, such as community safety, housing, waste collection, street cleaning, social inclusion and equalities work. It still has some important issues to address such as poor satisfaction and recycling rates;
 - the external auditors have issued an unqualified opinion on the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2007 and concluded that there are adequate arrangements in place for ensuring value for money; and
 - the Council has achieved a score of two in the annual Use of Resources assessment.

Action needed by the Council

- Investigate reasons and identify solutions for poor satisfaction rates.
- Develop and implement a plan to increase recycling rates.
- Ensure adequate capacity to enable improvements in planning performance.
- Consult and communicate on plans to address budget deficits.
- Continue to develop the approach to the management and use of resources, in particular the mechanisms for identifying future efficiency savings and value for money improvements.

Purpose, responsibilities and scope

- 2 This report provides an overall summary of the Audit Commission's assessment of the Council. It includes our review of how well the Council has progressed (our Direction of Travel report) and the auditors' assessment of how well the Council has managed its finances (the Use of Resources scores), and draws on the findings and conclusions from the audit of the Council.
- 3 We have addressed this letter to Councillors, as it is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the conduct of its business and that it safeguards and properly accounts for public money. We have made recommendations to assist the Council in meeting its responsibilities.
- 4 This letter also communicates the significant issues to key external stakeholders, including members of the public. We will publish this letter on the Audit Commission website at www.audit-commission.gov.uk. In addition the Council is planning to publish it on its website.
- 5 Your appointed auditors, Mazars LLP, are responsible for planning and carrying out an audit that meets the requirements of the Audit Commission's Code of Audit Practice (the Code). Under the Code, the auditors review and report on:
 - the Council's accounts;
 - whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources (value for money conclusion); and
 - whether the Council's best value performance plan has been prepared and published in line with legislation and statutory guidance.
- 6 This letter includes the latest assessment on the Council's performance under the CPA framework, including our Direction of Travel report.
- 7 We have listed the reports issued to the Council relating to 2006/07 audit and inspection work at the end of this letter.

How is the Council performing?

The improvement since last year - our Direction of Travel report

Summary

- 8 Gosport Borough Council can demonstrate good progress in meeting its priorities, although it still has some important issues to address.
- 9 Performance indicators show the Council as improving well in many service areas. It can demonstrate improvements in community safety, housing, waste collection, street cleaning, social inclusion and equalities work and several corporate health indicators. Progress to redevelop the Rowner estate continues positively. Most targets are being met and costs are generally low, showing the Council provides adequate value for money.
- However, satisfaction rates are poor. Progress with health, leisure and tourism outcomes remains limited, and planning performance has declined significantly in the last six months. Recycling rates also remain below average. Financial capacity is currently sound, but the Council faces significant budget deficits from next year. Better political consensus is being achieved to allow the Council to make some important strategic decisions. However there remain major challenges for councillors in agreeing how to secure financial capacity to deliver priorities in the medium and longer term. The Gosport Partnership has started to tackle the residents' major concerns of transport and jobs. Although the solution to access problems is not resolved, the Council continues to liaise with the county council via the Partnership for Urban South Hampshire (PUSH) and Transport for South Hampshire (TfSH) for a solution.

What evidence is there of the Council improving outcomes?

Performance indicators (PIs) show the Council is improving well, from an already good base. In 2006/07, 61 per cent of PIs improved from the previous year, compared to the district average of 58 per cent. It now has 37 per cent of PIs in the best 25 per cent of all councils, compared to 33 per cent of other councils. This shows the Council has improved more than many other councils. Top performing indicators include: new homes built on developed land; buildings returned to use; many planning and environmental PIs such as time to process applications, fly tipping, and the amount and cost of waste collected. Improvements have also been made in the past year to benefits, housing and corporate health indicators.

- 12 However, there are some areas of poorer performance. Pls comparable with the worst 25 per cent of councils for 2006/07 include: race equality checklist score: time taken to respond to complaints; collection of council and business tax; recycling rates; time to process benefits changes, planning appeals and urgent housing repairs completed on time. Satisfaction is poor with the Council overall as well as for waste, cleanliness, sports facilities and parks.
- 13 Its own performance analysis shows that most indicators are on track for 2007/08. This includes processing benefits, street cleanliness and planning appeals. However, performance is deteriorating with some corporate indicators such as percentage of black and minority ethnic and disabled staff compared with the local population as well as sickness rates. Planning speed has dropped significantly, and violent crimes and robberies are unlikely to decrease in line with targets.
- 14 In 2005 the Council agreed four strategic aims for the borough: People, Places, Prosperity and Pursuit of Excellence. Progress against each of these is assessed in the following commentary.

People

- 15 The outcomes the Council aims to deliver in this theme are: fewer instances of anti-social behaviour; less crime against people and property; and improved health and leisure facilities with increased usage.
- 16 The Council continues to successfully meet its community safety objectives. Significant investment over the past few years is now starting to improve crime figures. Processes for acceptable behaviour contracts and parenting contracts are now in place and adhered to by the Council and partners. It has also worked with the police to introduce drinking ban areas to curb anti-social behaviour. The Peninsula Project, a local project to prevent reoffending, has had much success and other councils are copying this approach. These initiatives have led to improvements in antisocial behaviour and crime as planned. For example, four out of the six key measured crimes have got better, with burglaries dropping from 15 to 9 per 1,000 households in 2006/07, and down to only 2.6 for the first half of 2007/08. However, violent crime increased over the past year and is unlikely to meet the 2008 target.

The Council can still only demonstrate mixed progress with its health and leisure facilities. Health inequalities, such as differences in life expectancy between income groups and above average teenage pregnancy rates, are prevalent in Gosport, and it is unclear at this point how the Council is resolving this with its partners. The Council is working to influence the PCT over its decision to close Haslar hospital to ensure alternative solutions for health care are put in place. In the meantime, it has invested in part-funding a mental health outreach worker, which has helped prevent homelessness. The development of a replacement leisure centre has been problematic due to lengthy political disagreements over the future of the site. However, a recent compromise has been reached, and the Council still hopes to have a replacement built by 2010. The Explosion! museum has reduced its opening hours this year, although plans to transfer it to a new operator are now underway, and its re-launch should take place this year as planned. In the meantime, its visitor numbers are below target.

Places

- 18 The outcomes the Council aims to deliver in this theme are: improved access and reduced congestion; a high quality waterfront; a regenerated Rowner Village; improved recycling with less waste; and quality public areas and green spaces.
- 19 Access and congestion remain key challenges for the borough. Transport is one of the two main new priorities of the local strategic Gosport Partnership, which should ensure buy-in from some major partners towards tackling these issues. However, plans for a western relief road and a major public transport scheme, which would involve commitment from the county council, are not in place. Bids to the Regional Assembly were not adopted. In the meantime, the Council has started a travel study to combat congestion and has worked with partners to ensure improvements to a major roundabout. Other access issues include the ferry landing stage, which is an important method of transport between Gosport and Portsmouth, but is in need of repair. The future of this access point is a priority for the Council, but the £3 million needed for its replacement has not been identified to date.
- Improvements have been made to the waterfront as planned. The conclusion of building agreements led to the opening of refreshment facilities at Stokes Bay and Lee-on-the-Solent in 2007. The redevelopment of Priddy's Hard is continuing on target, for example, with progress on the Explosion! museum mentioned above. This work is helping to ensure a high quality waterfront environment.
- The long term regeneration of Rowner Village continues to show much progress. This major £140 million redevelopment has involved extensive partnership working and resident consultation. The project is going ahead as planned, with building due to start next year. In the meantime, the Council continues with its social inclusion work in the area, including many successful community safety initiatives, and support to its local carnival, although problems such as low educational attainment remain.

- 22 The Council's recycling rate remains poor, but the amount of waste collected is in the best 25 per cent of councils and costs remain low. Recycling rates only rose marginally to 24 per cent in 2006/07 and are still around this rate due to continuing contamination. Targets are unlikely to be reached this year. However, the amount of waste collected remains very low at only 344kg per head of population, coupled with low costs. Satisfaction with waste collection fell from 83 per cent to a very low 59 per cent in 2006/07, although conversely, recycling satisfaction remains above average. The Council is continuing its public education campaign, including focusing on contamination of recyclables. It is also just about to start a pilot scheme for recycling in flats to help improve performance.
- 23 The Council continues to improve its public areas and green spaces, although satisfaction remains very poor. The percentage of land littered has reduced from 21 per cent to 9 per cent over the past 18 months, and problems with graffiti have been addressed in the last 6 months. Issues with contractor performance mean that grounds maintenance and housing maintenance work, such as grass cutting is below standard although this is being tackled by negotiating with contractors. Elsewhere, an audit of parks is underway, roundabouts have been newly landscaped and the Council has completed a five-year £1 millon lottery project to improve its historic parks.
- 24 The Council's planning service maintained its good performance between 2005/06 and 2006/07, but the speed of applications has declined considerably in the last six months. The amount of appeals was very high in 2006/07 at 50 per cent, but is now on target at 0 per cent for the last six months. Sickness absences and a key resignation led to a delay in processing applications in the past six months, with for example, major applications decided on time falling from 80 per cent to 33 per cent, and 'others' falling from 94 per cent to 79 per cent. Temporary staffing arrangements are now in place to recover performance.

Prosperity

- 25 Outcomes for this theme are: improved social inclusion; better access to decent housing; improved promotion of tourism opportunities; a knowledge and skills base that matches the need of local businesses; and increased investment in Gosport's economy.
- 26 Much of the Council's social inclusion work is focussed on the deprived Rowner estate. As previously mentioned, this has led to reduced crime and anti-social behaviour. Elsewhere, the Council has installed information kiosks and continued to supported community events and the local voluntary association. It also set up a group to facilitate a better understanding between Turkish and British taxi drivers, and is on target to develop and implement partnership-based regeneration plans in three deprived wards this year. The Council is working hard behind the scenes to improve its knowledge of its communities, particularly harder to reach groups, and is pursing its equality and diversity work with vigour.

- 27 The Council has ensured better access to housing. It completed a significant 217 affordable homes in 2006/07, provided a new hostel and introduced choice-based letting. It also continues to perform well with a low amount of vacant private-sector homes and a high amount of dwellings returned to occupation. Tenant satisfaction and the energy efficiency of their homes remains in the best 25 per cent of councils. Average length of stay in bed and breakfast accommodation and hostels remained slightly longer than average at 3.5 and 11 weeks respectively in 2006/07, although hostel stays have now fallen to 7 weeks.
- Performance on processing benefits has improved in all areas over the past year. For example, accuracy of claims is now 99 per cent and the time taken to process new claims fell from 29 days to 26 days better than average performance in 2006/07 and was 28 days as of October 2007. However, the time to process changes, although reduced from 20 days to 14 days, is still comparable with the worst 25 per cent of authorities. A take-up campaign is being launched imminently.
- New job opportunities have been created and the Council has worked with a range of partners to assist new and existing businesses to grow. Unfortunately these gains have been offset by a significant number of job losses in the Borough's traditional manufacturing base. This trend is set to continue, at least in the short term, with two major employers announcing large scale redundancies by the end of 2008. The Borough continues to have one of the lowest job densities in the south east region, although employment rates are rising. The net effect has been increased out-commuting, exacerbating traffic congestion at peak times.
- Outcomes for tourism and increasing the skill levels of the community remain limited. For example, many of the actions to promote tourism and the economy involved carrying out audits, surveys and data gathering, and so it is unclear if this has boosted visitor numbers or the economy. However, the Council did enable two waterfront cafes to open this year, and the town's website gained a 'highly commended' award. The Council's business broker has also facilitated events and developed links between the business community and local schools, as well as levering in additional funding for local businesses. Although the Council can show it is investing in this area, it may take some time to achieve these priorities. Given that deprivation (as measured by the Indices of Multiple Deprivation) has increased, it is important the Council continues to focus on achieving outcomes.

Pursuit of excellence

31 The Council aims to improve performance management and customer service, ensure trained, motivated staff and promote more effective decision making.

- 32 The Council has improved its service improvement planning and performance management system. There is better monitoring of the corporate plan, with a suite of outcomes, actions and position statements compiled regularly. For example, outcome statements, although in draft, are useful in highlighting the wide variety of actions that the Council has completed to improve its priorities. The Council has yet to link performance indicators closely to the corporate plan, which means it is difficult to assess or measure progress against priorities. However, a new management system is currently being populated, and the Council intends to use this opportunity to connect priorities to measurement more closely. It also realises the need to link plans more strongly to Local Area Agreement commitments. Finally, the Council has gathered baseline data from a wide variety of sources to develop its plans, including the Local Development Framework and new community strategy. Although there is still work to be done to embed the developments, this is an improvement on last year.
- 33 Customer service has improved. The Council has achieved a charter mark¹, set new customer standards and improved online services. It has installed self-service kiosks around the borough to help users access council services electronically, and refurbished its reception areas, which are now more accessible to disabled people. A young people's charter has been launched and a consultation policy is being approved. Staff have attended various training sessions, for example, on the Disability Equality Scheme. This has helped ensure that staff are motivated to deliver better customer service.
- 34 The planned review of democratic arrangements has been delayed until after the 2008 elections, although a revised councillor code of conduct has been adopted. This means that the Council's goal of more effective decision making cannot yet be fully demonstrated.
- The Council has made great progress in addressing equality and diversity issues this year. However, this has not yet had an impact on the Council's poor-performing equality indicators, and it remains at level 1 of the equalities standard. The Council's work has included: launching the disability equality scheme (DES); a customer care handbook including how to greet customers, with information on different races; a 'read text aloud' facility on the website; preparing Equality Impact Assessments for many services; and DES training for all staff. Workshops have led to practical improvements suggested by staff such as lowering council signs and its post-box, and installing more practical chairs in reception. Specific work has been done to engage the Polish community, several of whom attended one of the Council's advice days. However, councillors' involvement in equality issues is variable and many did not attend the DES training. The Council is now actively consulting on its draft race equality scheme and corporate equality policy which are due to be approved shortly. It is also hosting a community development worker on behalf of the county council, who has a remit to address mental health issues with the BME community. This focus on harder to reach groups helps to ensure fairer access to council services for all its citizens.

¹ Charter Mark is the government's national standard for customer service excellence.

Value for money is adequate. Overall, the Council is aiming to ensure that expenditure, quality of service and satisfaction levels improve. Cost and performance in many services are good, such as waste collection and street cleaning. However, satisfaction in many areas - particularly with the Council overall, planning, waste collection, and leisure services - is low. For example, satisfaction with parks and open spaces is in the lowest 25 per cent of councils, but its cost per head of population is high, which does not demonstrate value for money. The Council is addressing this by benchmarking its services, keeping councillors regularly informed and ensuring robust performance management. It has also commissioned research to look further into the reasons for poor satisfaction. However, resources to improve VFM are limited and so the Council is focussing on addressing priority areas. A comprehensive procurement strategy is in place although no major benefits have yet been achieved.

How much progress is being made to implement improvement plans to sustain future improvement?

- The Council has worked hard to engage its residents with community issues. After extensive consultation, the Gosport Partnership launched its new sustainable community strategy with agreed short-term priorities of transport and jobs. It has just started to focus on these two themes, and so has not yet agreed any smart targets for them. Nor does the strategy yet contain any strong links to the Local Area Agreement (LAA). In the meantime however, the partnership has developed a Children and Young People plan. The Council also welcomes the opportunity that the LAA will bring in helping to raise the low educational attainment that the borough experiences.
- A key development in other partnership work this year has been the sharing of internal audit staff with a neighbouring district. This is due to be expanded and formalised shortly, for example, with a service level agreement. Joint building control services with another district continues to help capacity. However, the joint plans for a benefits partnership have not progressed.
- 39 Staff capacity is mixed. Staff sickness rates are getting worse (although are still average), which is having an impact on some services such as processing planning applications. However, a new sickness procedure has been implemented and the Council is closely monitoring this.
- Financial capacity is adequate at present but is of concern in the longer term, with the Council facing major budget deficits in forthcoming years. Use of Resources work (the Council scored two out of a possible four for this) show it is performing well in financial reporting and standing, and adequately in management, internal control and value for money. However, although the budget is balanced for 2007/08, the Council is facing significant deficits for following years, in part due to the unforeseen extra cost of concessionary bus fares. This could result in reserves falling below the policy level. It is unclear how councillors are addressing this concern, and whether the public are aware of the problem.

41 Weaknesses in corporate governance last year have started to improve, and the Council can demonstrate better political working, for example, by agreeing the introduction of drinking orders and the future of the Explosion! museum. However, poor media relations and key disagreements still remain between political parties over the future of car park charges and leisure centre refurbishment. This means there are major challenges for councillors in agreeing how to secure financial capacity to deliver priorities in the medium and longer term, as well as uncertainty and a lack of vision for residents over these issues.

Other performance work

- The Hampshire Local Area Agreement (LAA) is progressing well with good engagement and cooperation from all partners, including District Councils. The LAA runs from April 2006 to March 2009. The original agreement and action plan was signed in February 2006 and the outcomes, indicators and targets have been updated for 2007/08. The LAA helps focus the attention of partners on eight priority outcomes and four Flagship initiatives drawn from the Hampshire Sustainable Community Strategy and the eleven District Sustainable Community Strategies.
- 43 Hampshire Partners are setting up a Hampshire Senate. This will bring together and streamline LAA and Hampshire Strategic Partnership (HSP) governance and is intended to improve leadership and accountability. The HSP with partners is currently refreshing its Sustainable Community Strategy 'Shaping our future together' 2007-2017 to be signed off by June 2008. District Councils are engaged and contributing effectively to this.

The audit of the accounts and value for money

- 44 Mazars LLP, as your appointed auditors have reported separately to the Standards and Governance Committee on 13 September 2007 on the issues arising from the 2006/07 audit and have issued:
 - an audit report, providing an opinion on your accounts and a conclusion on your vfm arrangements to say that these arrangements are adequate; and
 - a report on the best value performance plan (BVPP) confirming that it had been audited.

Use of Resources

- 45 The findings of the auditor are an important component of the CPA framework described above. In particular, the Use of Resources score is derived from the assessments made by the auditor in the following areas.
 - Financial reporting (including the preparation of the accounts of the Council and the way these are presented to the public).
 - Financial management (including how the financial management is integrated with strategy to support council priorities).
 - Financial standing (including the strength of the Council's financial position).
 - Internal control (including how effectively the Council maintains proper stewardship and control of its finances).
 - Value for money (including an assessment of how well the Council balances the costs and quality of its services).
- For the purposes of the CPA your auditors have assessed the Council's arrangements for use of resources in these five areas as follows.

Table 1

Element	Assessment
Financial reporting	3 out of 4
Financial management	2 out of 4
Financial standing	3 out of 4
Internal control	2 out of 4
Value for money	2 out of 4
Overall assessment of the Audit Commission	2 out of 4

(Note: 1 = lowest, 4 = highest)

16 Annual Audit and Inspection Letter | The audit of the accounts and value for money

The key issues arising from the audit

The audit of the accounts and value for money

- An unqualified opinion on the Statement of Accounts was issued on 28 September 2007. A small number of misstatements in the draft Statement of Accounts were identified during the course of the audit. There was one material classification error and other non-material errors but all were corrected by management.
- The auditors concluded that the Council's value for money arrangements were adequate and issued a report to that effect on 28 September 2007. There were no significant matters arising from the audit work.
- The statutory audit report on the 2006/7 BVPP was issued on 30 November 2006. The auditors were satisfied that in all significant respects the BVPP was prepared and published in accordance with the statutory requirements and there were no matters that required to be formally reported to the Council.

Use of resources

The key findings in relation to each of the five Use of Resources themes are summarised below.

Financial reporting

- The Council produced accounts which were largely free from material errors and misstatements. There was one classification error which was material and a further two non-material errors. The Council received an unqualified opinion on the statement of accounts for 2006/07.
- During the audit, staff were available to answer audit queries and dealt with all requests on a timely basis. Working papers supporting the statement of accounts were adequate.
- 53 The Council website has a comprehensive range of information available for the public, including the statement of accounts, agendas, minutes and reports for council meetings and committees.
- 54 Summary accounts and an annual report are not yet produced by the Council. These should be produced and made available to all stakeholders.

Financial management

- 55 A Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is in place and linked to key strategic objectives. This was updated in March 2008.
- There is an adequate budget setting process in place, with balanced budgets in place for 2006/07 and 2007/08. Budget holders are involved in the budget setting process each year. The budget is revised between the Finance team and the relevant budget holder and finally approved by the Policy and Organisation Board and full Council.

- There is a formal scheme of budget delegation in place and guidance is distributed to all relevant officers. The Corporate Management Team have overall responsibility of professional standards.
- 58 Effective budget monitoring is undertaken, with involvement from budget holders, senior management and Members. A regular training programme for has been in place since summer 2006. The Council should consult, advise and train budget holders, to ensure that relevant financial information for their budget monitoring is provided.
- 59 Partnership arrangements are regularly reviewed by the relevant business unit and any points are actioned as appropriate.
- 60 The Council has introduced an updated capital strategy (2007-2012) which is linked to the MTFS.
- An Asset Management Plan was produced in 2006/07 and approved by Members in April 2007. The Council should consider introducing a set of local performance measures that evaluate asset use in relation to corporate objectives.

Financial standing

- The Council sets balanced budgets and has maintained spending within overall budget without excessive rises in council tax. The monitoring of budgets throughout the year ensures that there are no major overspends. There is no history of unexpected under or overspends.
- A formal reserves policy is in place and is reviewed on a quarterly basis to ensure that the level is suitable for the activities of the Council. The quarterly budget reports comment on the appropriateness of the reserves balances and will make adjustments if required. These are reported to Members.
- Targets for income recovery are set and levels of debt recovery are monitored. However, this has only recently been introduced and there is scope to further improve the effectiveness and coverage of debt recovery actions.
- The Council should consider monitoring key financial health indicators with challenging targets set in areas such as income collection, variances from budget for example.

Internal control

The Council has updated its Risk Management Policy as part of a review of the assurance framework which was approved in April 2007. Prior to the recent update the risk management policy had not been updated for three years. The Council should ensure that, in future, the policy is reviewed annually and updated where necessary.

- **18** Annual Audit and Inspection Letter | The audit of the accounts and value for money
- responsibility for identifying corporate and operational risks. There is also a risk management working group that assists with this responsibility. A corporate risk register is in place that assigns ownership for each risk. Risk profiles are in place and available on the intranet. The risk management strategy should specifically consider the risks in relation to partnership working. Risk management awareness training should be provided to Members with specific responsibility for risk management.
- The Standards and Governance Committee are responsible for the review and approval of the Statement of Internal Control (SIC). There are specific action plans in place for all weaknesses identified in the SIC.
- 69 The Council has a business continuity plan in place. However the plan is out of date and currently being updated, with the help of consultants.
- A new Member code of conduct was introduced during 2007, which all Members have signed up to. There is an anti-fraud and corruption policy in place, which was updated in April 2007 and has been communicated throughout the Council. The Council needs to ensure that an assessment of the standards of conduct of Members takes place to ensure compliance with the code of conduct and that appropriate action is taken against complaints received.

Value for money

- 71 As noted above, a Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and corporate plan have been developed since last year and linked to strategic priorities.
- 72 There are a number of areas of low customer satisfaction (in particular planning, leisure and recreation services). The Council is aware of these issues and is taking steps to address them.
- 73 The Council is benchmarking its performance against other authorities. Performance management arrangements are robust and Members are kept updated on a regular basis.
- 74 There are limited resources available to further improve value for money performance and the Council is focusing on areas of priority.
- 75 A comprehensive procurement strategy is in place and a procurement sub-group regularly monitors procurement exercises. There is limited evidence of the benefits that have been achieved to date. The Council needs to continue to regularly monitor procurement exercises and ensure that value for money is achieved for all purchases. Successes and failures should be recorded to assist value for money decisions going forward.

Looking ahead

- 76 The public service inspectorates are currently developing a new performance assessment framework, the Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA). CAA will provide the first holistic independent assessment of the prospects for local areas and the quality of life for people living there. It will put the experience of citizens, people who use services and local tax payers at the centre of the new local assessment framework, with a particular focus on the needs of those whose circumstances make them vulnerable. It will recognise the importance of effective local partnership working, the enhanced role of Sustainable Communities Strategies and Local Area Agreements and the importance of councils in leading and shaping the communities they serve.
- 77 CAA will result in reduced levels of inspection and better coordination of inspection activity. The key components of CAA will be a joint inspectorate annual area risk assessment and reporting performance on the new national indicator set, together with a joint inspectorate annual direction of travel assessment and an annual use of resources assessment. The auditors' use of resources judgements will therefore continue, but their scope will be widened to cover issues such as commissioning and the sustainable use of resources.
- 78 The first results of our work on CAA will be published in the autumn of 2009. This will include the performance data from 2008/09, the first year of the new Local Area Agreements.

Closing remarks

- 79 This letter has been discussed and agreed with the Chief Executive and Deputy Chief Executive on 20 March 2008. A copy of the letter was presented at the Standards and Governance Committee on 24 April 2008. Copies need to be provided to all Council members.
- **80** Further detailed findings, conclusions and recommendations on the areas covered by audit and inspection work are included in the reports issued to the Council during the year.

Table 2 Reports issued

Report	Date of issue
Audit and Inspection plan	April 2006
Report to management: Interim audit 2006/07	June 2007
Annual Governance Report	September 2007
Opinion on financial statements	28 September 2007
Value for money conclusion	28 September 2007
Report to management: Final accounts 2006/07	December 2007
Report to management: Use of Resources 2007	December 2007
Report to management: Data Quality review 2006/07	December 2007
Annual Audit and Inspection Letter	March 2008

The Council has taken a positive and constructive approach to audit and inspection work, and I wish to thank the Council's staff for their support and cooperation during the audit.

Availability of this letter

This letter will be published on the Audit Commission's website at www.audit-commission.gov.uk, and also on the Council's website.

Linda Krywald Relationship Manager

May 2008